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Gerry Kraus, Vice President-Compliance
Phone: 800-477-3633 Ext. 7705

Fax:(515)440-7690
email: gkraus@homesteaderslife.com

October 8, 2007

Arthur Coccodrilli, Chairman
Independent Regulatory Review Commission
333 Market Street, 14th Floor
Harrisburg, PA 17101

Via e-mail to: irrc@irrc.state.pa.us
Hard coy to follow by regular mail

IN RE: Proposed rulemaking concerning preneed activities of unlicensed employee(s)
Pennsylvania State Board (the Board) of Funeral Directors Reference No. 16A-4816
Link: http://www.pabulletin.coni/secure/data/vol37/37-39/1793.html

Dear Chairman Coccodrilli

Homesteaders Life Company is an Iowa based mutual insurer specializing in the administration
of life insurance and annuity products marketed through the funeral industry to fund formal
preneed contracts. We are a national leader and innovator in this niche of both industries and we
have considerable concerns about Pennsylvania consumer's and their opportunities regarding
funeral planning.

Mr. Ernie Heffner, President of Heffher Crematory and Funeral Chapel and licensed funeral
director from York, PA, has provided me with a copy of his comments to you dated October 1
and 2, 2007 regarding this same proposal by the Board. His comments and your possible review
of the Board's action relative to this rule have prompted me to provide you with these comments.

We see funeral home operations in many, many states similar to what we here propose. In fact,
it is our observation that in most of the other states funeral regulations regarding the activities of
unlicensed persons are now more liberal than those currently in force in Pennsylvania.

The Board should find some comfort regarding the liberalization of controls on unlicensed
person from the stellar track record of the funeral industry in providing the utmost in terms of
consumer satisfaction. Since it relies on the complete satisfaction of not only its immediate
customers but also on successive future generations of those customers, the funeral industry
makes sure that it conducts itself with the highest of standards. From this position of self-
conduct the funeral industry stands in good stead to merit more self-control over its activities.



We have also observed a great deal of unwarranted over-regulation in the funeral and insurance
industries. We hope that the Board takes this opportunity to acknowledge that a move toward
liberalization is due in the Pennsylvania preneed market.

We look forward to working with the Board and the members of the funeral industry in
preserving the value of funeral service. We provided testimony previously on this subject to the
Board and have remaining concerns we hope you will give due consideration.

1. Since some funeral providers wish to engage persons to act for them who may not be
employees we suggest the term "employee" throughout this proposal be revised to read
"employee or agent". This would be consistent with the Federal Court Order in Walker v
Flitton. There should be no valid reason to require these persons to be employees so long
as they operate under the close supervision of a licensed funeral director and under the
terms of a formal engagement or authorization agreement with the funeral entity.

2. In conformance with the suggestion above the "employment" agreement should be
renamed an "engagement" agreement or "authorization" agreement. Again, this would be
consistent with the Federal Court Order in Walker v Flitton

3. The transaction of the funeral agreement should be considered a distinctly separate act
from the transaction of the sale of insurance. Given that distinction, any licensed
insurance agent involved in the insurance transaction should be permitted to receive a
commission, irrespective of licensure or lack of licensure of any other type.

Both funeral providers and other persons not licensed as funeral directors, so long as they
have a valid insurance license, should be permitted to receive insurance commissions.
The funeral entity can adequately control the actions of both funeral directors and
unlicensed persons through the engagement agreement and their supervisory procedures
to the extent that any concerns associated with insurance commissions should be negated.

4. In today's world of electronic commerce the requirement that each customer must consult
face-to-face with a licensed funeral director is overly restrictive. Unlicensed persons
should be permitted, within the terms of their engagement agreement and under the close
supervision of a licensed funeral director, to perform all of the activities involved in
preneed contracting.

If the individual funeral entity wishes to further restrict these activities then they can be
controlled at the individual funeral home level under the terms of the engagement
agreement. The individual funeral entity could then chose how liberally or restrictively
to control the activities of unlicensed persons.

Some jurisdictions, including our home state, Iowa, require that if funeral services are
provided in the contract a licensed funeral director must sign the contract. These types of
variations in controlling these activities need not be controlled by regulation however,
since they can be adequately controlled individually by the funeral entity. This permits
much wider flexibility by the funeral entity and the regulator.



5. The requirement that any document provided to the consumer by the unlicensed person
contain the proposed 20-point type disclosure seems an unwarranted burden on funeral
entities. The practice would have many unintended consequences including alarming
families about the actions of unlicensed persons in handling documents that are now
routinely handled by unlicensed persons but have nothing to do with the funeral contract.

We favor consumer disclosure but feel this part of the proposal has not been well
considered. The disclosure seems partially appropriate for situations where the parties
may decide not to contract formally, such as when only a worksheet is prepared. The
portion that discloses the need for the face-to-face meeting with a licensed funeral
provider seems inappropriate, especially for situations where no contract is transacted.

We recommend the proposed disclosure requirement be deleted in its entirety.

6. The permitted activities of unlicensed persons under the proposal should be expanded to
include the authority to contract for the funeral entity as permitted under the terms of the
engagement agreement.

7. Unlicensed persons should be permitted to act for more than one funeral entity so long as
the supervision and engagement agreement requirements are met. This is particularly
important for smaller funeral entities and communities where the unlicensed persons may
be now acting for more that one funeral entity.

We will again provide these comments to the Board, with little optimism for their favorable
consideration, since the Board has previously ignored them summarily.

We appreciate your thoughtful inquiry into the Board's oversight of this important consumer
market. Please let me know if you have questions or need more information.

Sincerely

Gerry Kraus

Cc: John H. Jewett, Regulatory Analyst, IRRC, jjewett@irrc.state.pa.us

Fiona E. Wilmarth, Director of Regulatory Review, IRRC, fwilmarth@irrc.state.pa.us

Heather Wimbush Emery, Assistant Counsel, IRRC, hemery@irrc.state.pa.us

Representative P. Michael Sturla, Chairman, House Professional Licensure Committee,
msturla0),pahouse.net

Marlene Tremmel, Executive Director, House Professional Licensure Committee
mtremmel@pahouse.net



Christine Line, Counsel, House Professional Licensure Committee,
ciine@pahousegop.com

Donald F. Morabito, D. Ed, Office of Public Liaison, dmorabito@state,pa.us

Representative Stanley Saylor, House Professional Licensure Committee,
ssaylor@pahousegop.com

Ron Virag, President and CEO, Ameriserv Trust and Financial Services Company,
rvirag@ameriservfinancial.com

Ernie Peterson, Ameriserv Trust and Financial Services Company,
epetersen@ameriserv.com

James J. Kutz, Esquire, ikutz@postschell.com


